
CITY OF CORTLAND CABLE COMMISSION
Third Floor, City Hall, Mayor’s conference room

Monday, February 4, 2013

Present: Richard Menapace, Chair; James Forshee, Aaron Hamid, Lisa 
Kahle, Sharon Stevans, and Kevin Williams, Commissioners; 
Barbara Bergeron, Secretary

Quorum was present.

Chair Menapace called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM.

Herb Engman, TCCOG Time Warner Committee of Towns, shared documenta-
tions with Chair Menapace who circulated copies to those present.  They were:
“Comments from Time Warner Customers” dated October 2012; Public Hearing 
held Nov 1, 2012 at Ithaca Town Hall; and “Time Warner ‘Case Study-New Town 
of Lansing homeowner attempt to get TW service’ 2012” dated January 2013.
Commissioner Forshee circulated a FLTGRegional Fiber Optic Network map. 
Cortland is noted as “future fiber cities.”

Chair Menapace received a call from Ruth Grunberg regarding her last TWC bill. 
There was an increase on her Tier 1 subscription as she was charged for a “TV 
Guide” at $2.79/month.  She does not remember receiving a written notice of this 
new charge and Chair Menapace suggested everyone who is a TWC customer 
to check their bill.

Chair Menapace advised he had also called Carol McTague in Albany and sent 
an e-mail to David Whalen asking for a report.  Carol noted she had talked to 
David and “he was working on that report.”

Commissioner Kahle made a motion to adopt the minutes of January 7, 2013. 
Commissioner Forshee seconded the motion, and the minutes were adopted.

Old Business:

Public Hearing held January 15, 2013 at Cortland City Hall:
• No written comments/transcripts received by the 

Commission since the public hearing.  
• Chair Menapace advised Mayor Brian Tobin had all the 

written pubic comments.  Commissioner Stevans will ask 
about them at tomorrow’s taping of the legislature meeting.

• Chair Menapace received an e-mail response from David 
Whalen (1/24/2013) that he passed a compilation of 
complaints to (TWC) customer service; and monthly reports 



Cortland Cable Commission         -2-                    February 4, 2013

will to be sent to Cortland Cable Commission.  As of today, 
none have been received.

Chair Menapace addressed the lack of attendance at CCC meetings as tabled at 
last meeting regarding defining a minimum requirement of attendance to stay on 
the Commission or ask related municipality to get a replacement.

Commissioner Williams made a motion to look at the attendance for the last two 
years and establish a policy.

Chair Menapace suggested meetings may be changed to quarterly instead of 
monthly.  Meetings would be held March, June, September and December.  If 
this schedule is established, an attendance policy would take effect the meeting 
of the first quarter.  

Ruth Grunberg has a close contact with Onondaga County and suggested 
perhaps the CCC should work with a municipality-owned cable commission: i.e.,
Cortland working with Tompkins and Onondaga County commission boards as a 
cooperative to obtain a floating loan or bond for such a project.

Chair Forshee stated fiber optics installed past his home.  Finger Lakes Tech Inc. 
stopped at every pole from Dryden line to (Elm Tree) golf course.  They have 
fiber, ION project (part of Cisco).  Finger Lakes dealing with phone service with 
government contracts and Cornell, not TV.  They want the big accounts.  Com-
missioner Kahle asked about the New Visions coming in Homer and Commis-
sioner Williams advised, “it petered out.”  They wanted more and more 
signatures.

Commissioner Hamid had seen an e-mail report and “Googled” a Google fiber 
infrastructure that came to Kansas City.  As a result TWC was soon providing 
better service and prices were dropped—competition is good.

Chair Menapace asked what the Commission should do to be cooperative with 
Tompkins County.  He hasn’t reached out with Onondaga.  Commissioner 
Stevans advised the Commission needs the Public Hearing transcripts and talk 
with Herb Engman.  Are there things in common between Tompkins County and 
Cortland?  She agreed starting just with Tompkins commission board.

Commissioner Kahle asked what the status was of their contract with TWC. 
Commissioner Stevans replied, “automatic rollover, but not expired.”

Chair Menapace mentioned another question from Ruth Grunberg.  Channel 2 
has been posting trivia questions and Ruth wanted to know where the Jewish 
trivia was.



Cortland Cable Commission         -3-                    February 4, 2013

Commissioner Stevans also asked where the Commission stood about an audit. 
Chair Menapace advised he had asked Mack Cook at the Public Hearing.  He’ll 
ask him again.

Chair Menapace asked how the Commission would proceed on the subject of 
attendance at meetings.

Commissioner Forshee asked how often to meet.  He then made a motion to 
second Commissioner Williams’ motion to establish a policy.  He suggested if the 
Commission went to 4 meetings a year (quarterly), must attend 3 meetings.  He 
noted people do have other commitments.

Commissioner Stevans suggested if a commissioner could not attend, they 
should step down.  The municipality represented could have a representative and 
an alternate.

Commissioner Kahle was okay with quarterly meetings.  She stated it’s been 
hard to accomplish anything at a meeting with the contract the way it is.  She 
liked the support of Tompkins commission board and that Engman had attended 
our public hearing.  She’d like to keep that momentum going.  She’s a SUNY 
(Cortland) representative, but not a TWC customer, as the service doesn’t go 
where she lives.

Chair Menapace reviewed some of the By-laws of the Commission and advised 
these are posted on the City’s website.

• 8 members appointed by Mayor (of Cortland) and approved 
by the Common Council; by Mayor of Homer Village; by 
town of Homer, Mayor of McGraw; Cortlandville

• Elect one person as President
• Power and duties-received complaints and work with 

cable/radio service for recommendations to the City and 
municipalities

• Have knowledge in redefining contract with service company
• Keep City of Cortland Mayor and Common Council informed 

of reception capabilities and charges by state, federal, etc.
• Annually hold a public hearing

Commissioner Forshee asked if the Commission should make a yearly presenta-
tion to the Common Council.

Commissioner Stevans affirmed it’s a good thing to do as she got the sense that 
some of the Council members found the cable problems were “news.”  They 
receive complaints all the time about road potholes or a tree being down.  They 



Cortland Cable Commission           -4-                February 4, 2013

don’t seem to be aware that CCC has advised and requested TWC outage 
reports and have worked about 8 years on the contract.

Commission Hamid pointed out that an annual report is in the charter, item #2 or 
public hearing preferred.  Commission Stevans advised the Commission needs 
to give responses to complaints at the hearing.  Commissioner Hamid asked how 
the report would be presented.  Perhaps think of doing something during 
absence of quarterly meeting.  Commissioner Stevans suggested a special 
meeting could be held if need be.  Commissioner Hamid would like to start with a 
set of goals to be accomplished.

Commissioner Williams stated half of the information presented at the Public 
Hearing had nothing to do with the Commission and things we can’t fix.  It did 
bring David Whalen to Cortland.  Chair Menapace added that a letter from Mayor 
Tobin requesting TWC representation helped.

Chair Menapace reviewed his disappointment in working with David Whalen who 
first gave a verbal agreement regarding drops; then no.  Think about attendance 
policy at March meeting.  We’ll meet quarterly.  If you can’t come, must call Chair 
Menapace.

Commisioner Forshee said there should be a policy or you can’t negate participa-
tion rule; get someone as a replacement.

Commissioner Kahle asked what happens if municipality is not represented.

Chair Menapace advised he does send meeting notices to all of cable 
commissioners of the municipalities.

Commissioner Hamid said participation dependent on reflection of a quorum. 
Municipality must be notified.  No representation.  Chair Menapace advised Mr. 
Minnella is an Ex-Officio and has no vote; but all municipality representatives do.
The Public Service Commission was more involved with contract negotiations in 
1995 compared to those in 2005.  Commissioner Stevans agreed that they have 
less staff and less clout over TWC.

Commissioner Williams asked for clarification about Town of Homer’s cable 
contract.  Chair Menapace advised there is a master agreement (Cable 
Commission) but each municipality goes over it for any individual changes.

Commissioner Forshee asked about Homer’s reluctance to accept a proposal for 
PEG of 3 cents per TWC client.  Commissioner Williams stated Homer had 
looked at another franchise; he was in favor of the 3-cent fee but the Town was 



Cortland Cable Commission         -5-                   February 4, 2013

not.  He doesn’t feel Homer needs representation on CCC.  Commissioner 
Forshee suggested Homer may feel disenfranchised with the CCC and asked if 
the Commission was more vocal with Homer about complains, would that help?

Chair Menapace referenced his letter to the editor of “Cortland Standard” 
regarding three main issues.  Commissioner Forshee asked, “Do people in 
Homer know who to contact?

Commissioner Stevans asked that the report/transcript of the Public Hearing be 
sent to each municipality.  Chair Menapace reiterated that he shares information 
with all municipalities.

Commissioner Forshee made a motion to finalize an attendance policy at the 
March meeting.  Commissioner Stevans seconded the motion.

Chair Menapace will set an appointment with Mayor Tobin who was interested in 
this matter.  Commissioner Williams would like considered how the Commission 
will take action or enforce the new policy.  Member in good standing

The motion was voted upon and passed unanimously.

Chair Menapace adjourned the meeting at 8:01 PM.

The next meeting is scheduled for Monday, March 4, 2013.

Respectfully submitted,

Barbara Bergeron


	Present:	Richard Menapace, Chair; James Forshee, Aaron Hamid, Lisa Kahle, Sharon Stevans, and Kevin Williams, Commissioners; Barbara Bergeron, Secretary
	Cortland Cable Commission         -2-                    February 4, 2013
	Cortland Cable Commission         -3-                    February 4, 2013
	Cortland Cable Commission           -4-                February 4, 2013
	Cortland Cable Commission         -5-                   February 4, 2013


